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BRIEF QOVERVIEW ABDUT US:

We are a medium sized bank focused on providing banking

and financial services to commerciat, corporate, business
and retail customers including large corporate institutions,
parastatals non-governmental organizations, diplomatic
missions and mukti-nationals.

We are both an operazing company as well as a holding
company, providing chrough our subsidiaries, life
assurance, general
investment hanking and stock broking services and we
have evoived 1o become a financial services conglomerate

commonty referred to as “CFC Group'.

We are a publicly listed company on the Nairobi Stock
Exchange and duly comply with afl guidelines issued by
the Capital Markets Authority ("CMA") and the Natirobi
Stock Exchange (“NSE™).

AWARDS & RATINGS

We received the “Customer Satisfaction” Award in the
Banking Survey Awards conducted by the “Marketing
Intetligance”.

We are rared by FitchRatings as:
. B- for Foreign Currency Long Term DR,
. B for Foreign Currency Short Term; and

* Stable for Qudook

OUR EMPLOYEES

We have a staff complement of approximately three
hundred employees spread across clearly defined operating
departments. Our recruirment policy is based on selecting
individuals with sound =zcademic qualifications and
relevant working expericnce (o ensure high productivity
and integrity.

insurance, fund management,

We acknowledge that the key resource in enabling us
ra deliver our strategic objectives is the human capital
employed and our mission is to make CFC Bank, the
emplover of choice,

OUR VISION:

“Customer Inspired. Dedicated People.
Committed o Adding Value® J

OUR MISSION:

“We commit to provide integrated financiaf
solutions, innovatively managing customer
relationships for wealth crearion” J

OUR CORE VALUES:

L ]
»  Provide uncompromising standards of service

to our customers at all times.

~ Do what is right and always acr with
integrity.

« Leqgd, inspire and respect each other while
valuing personal growth and development.

»  Deliver shareholder value whilst contributing

\ to the community. J

OUR RALLYING CRY:

“Your success. Our inspiration” J
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Dear Shareholder,

1t is my pleasure to present the Bank’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for
the year ended 31st December 2006, [ am happy to report thar CFC Group’s Profic
before Tax for 2006 surpassed the Ksh 1 billion mark for the first time.

Before I deal with the key highlights of your Bank’s performance, an overview of the

opergting environment may be appropriate,

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

During the year under review Kenya's economic growth
regained its trajectory in the second half of 2006, after a
spell of dry weather in the first haif of the year. Reai GBDP
growth for the year was just under 6% as key sectors
such as touriste, building & construction, {ranspore
& telecommunications and manufacturing remained
robust. The above average rains received in the second
half of rhe year helped stabilize the agricultural sector.

Thanks to the drought conditions experienced early in
the year, inflationary pressures remained elevated for
most of the year despite a softening of oil prices in the
second half. The 12 month overall inflation registered
an increased level of 15.6% at year end while underlying
inflation was maintained below the Central Bank of
Kenya's target of 5%. The above average rains in the
last quarter of the year however helped (o decelerare
inflationary pressures aarly in 2007,

The Government budget deficit was Kshs 24.2 biliion
at year end representing 1.4 percent of GDP on
commitment basis. The overall balance of payments
improved to a surplus of UUS % 691 million in 2006 from
US $ 275 million in 2005, the improvement resclting

from increased capital and financial inflows, The current
accounr deficit however deteriorated to US $ 986 million
for 2006 as compared @ US $ 270 million in 2005,
Gross foreign exchange reserves improved year on year
by US § 616 million ro US § 2415 million representing
4.5 months of imports cover. During 2006 the Kenya
Shilling appreciated by 3.9% against the US § and 5%
against the Japanese Yen but weakened by 9.35% against

the Sterling Pound and 7% against the Eure,

Treasury Bill rates were cénwined within the singie digit
level providing a conducive envirenment for borrawers.
The benchmark 91 day rate declined to.5.8% at year end
from 8.1% ar the beginning of the year.

The low interest rate regime supported increased activity
on the Mairobi Stock Exchange which registered a second

consccutive year of double digit returns. The NSE index .

gained 42.1% during 2006 closing the year at 5560
with the market capitalization rising (o Ksh 791 billian.
The market activity was buoyed by strong earnings
growth in listed companies, high levels of Hquidity in
morey markets and the successful introduction of the
Automated Trading System during the year. NSE saw a
racord of four new listings in 2006; the listing of Kengen

that raised Ksh 78 billion was a landmark transaction for .
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capital markets in Kenya - the euphoria and excitement
the IPCY generated was quite unprecedented. However the
P / E muitiple for the market increased to an unsustainable
25 by year end pointing to the possibility of a correction
early in 2007,

Far the year 2007 GDP growth is expected io be more
robust at abour 6%, The interest rate and exchange rate
anvironment wili most likely be stable with movements
within a narrow range. The Stock Marker could see an
averdue correction feading to more reasonable P/E
maltiples. Political uncertainly in this election vear and
capacity consrraints in infrastructure could impede the
rapid growth wimnessed over the last three years , even as
agriculture , tourism , building & construction , transport
& relecommunications and manufacturing sectors are

expected to show strong performance once again.

HIGHLIGHTS OF OUR PERFORMANCE IN
2006

Banking assets increased by 21.53% from KShs 20.893
billion as at year end 2005 to KShs. 25.392 billion as ar
vear end 2006, 1.oans and advances increased by KShs
3.241 billion 1w KShs 15,053 billion while Governmant
securitias holdings increased by KShs 1.998 billion.
Deposits increased by KShs, 3,498 billion.

Group assets increased from KShs 33.095 billion o
KShs 4(1.369 billion representing an increase of 22%.

Group Pre-tax profit rose to KShs 1.367 billion, up from
KShs 366 million representing an increase of 57.9%.
Profit atiributable to shareholders in¢reased by 69.4%
from KShs 464 million to KShs 786 million. Earnings per
share went up to KShs 5.04 from KShs 3.17. Overal! the
performance was pleasing as Profit Before Tax surpassed
the K5hs 1 billion mark for the first time.

The managemert made a determined attempt to achicve

superior raturns to sharcholders, focusing its effort on cost .

of deposits and operating costs thus realising improved
net interest margins and cost to income ratios,

The subsidiaries continued to make posidve contributions
to Group prefits, Pre-tax profit from insurance operations
increased from KShs 472 million for year ended December
2005 ta KShs 683 million for year ended ecember
2006. CFC Financia! Services Limited contributed KShs
231 miltiont by way of Pre-tax profit, up from KShs 95
million: for the previous vear. The swerling performance
of CFC Financial Services Limited which played a leading
rgle in ali the 1POs during the vear under review was a key
hightight.

Based on the much improved performance your Board
recommends a final dividend of KShs 1.25 per share in
addition to the interim dividend of KShs 0.50 per share
already paid in December 2006. This makes for a rotal
dividend pay cut of KShs 1.75 per shave, up from KShs
0.84 por share paid for the year 2005.

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS IN 2006

I will now bring to your atention some of our key
achievemenis during 2006 and initiatives thatare bound to

have & lasting impact on our performance going forward.

= The Bank successfully launched its Retail &
SME initiative and aggressively marketed new
accounts in the personal & SME sectors. A loan
product <alled “Mo Marata Loan” was faunched
and became an instant hit in the market.

+  The Bank lzunched its credit card under the
Master Card franchise, with novel Chip & PiN
security features and SMS and e-mail alert
functions, For the first time in Kenya.
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The Bank launched a new "Pamoja” account for
the NGO, and Church organizations with special
features taitored to the specific requirements of

these institutional depositors.

A state of the art 1T banking application styled
‘T 24' replaced the legacy Microbanker plarform.
Afrer an initial period of conversion related
glitches the new system has fulfy stabilized and
is proving to be efficient and user friendly.

Wirth the assistance of KPMG a job evaluation
axercise covering the entire organization was
completed leading to the introduction of a

scientific job grading methodology.

A new Surategic plan for the period 2007 -
2009 was developed by the senior management
team with rthe active invoivement of ldearion
Groups representing the entire work force, The

" management team adopted new Vision and

Mission statements and an inspiring Rallying
Cry for the Bank. ’

The Bank adopted enhanced risk management
processes during the year. Towards this end
a new Anti Money Laundering policy was
adopted and an enhanced Credit Policy was
prepared for implementation in early 2007,

Dur‘fng the year three non executive directors
{Mr. Fitus Maikuni , Mr. Andrew Gregory and
Mr. Fred Ojiambo] joined the Board while Mr,
AP, Hamilton who served on the Board with
distinction for thirteen years retired from the
Board.

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statements | (e) -

DISCUSSIONS WITH STANDARD BANK
GROUP OF SOUTH AFRICA

Before | conclude | wish to briefly refer to an approach
we received from Standard Bank Group of South Africa
late in 2006 suggesting a merger of Sranbic Bank Kenya's
operations with CFC Group's operations.

Following an inirial assessment of the merger proposal
and rthe potential synergies arising from a possible
combination of the two businesses {including our
insurance and financial services operations) the parties
have completed a parallel due diligence exercise. We
will now proceed o discuss due diligence findings and
prograss with negotiations. Subject 1o the negotiations
being successful and after receipt of due regulatory
approvals we will convene an Extra-Ordinary general
meeating of shareholders 0 deliberate on the merger

propuosals.

In conciusion i would like 1o formally register my
appreciation to my col{eagues on the Board, management
and staff of the CFC Group companies for their exemplary
commitment and dedication. | wish to thank our loyal
customers and business parcners for their patronage and
most importantly you, shareholders for your unstinted

Support,
Thank you.
C. Njonjo

28th March 2007
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management programs established to monitor regulatory
compiiance and ovetsee the Group’s risk management
policies and procedures.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee is

induction and
remuneration of the Directors. Remuneration of the

responsible  for  the appointments,
Directors is based on responsibilities allocated to the
Directors, and is subject to annual reviews to ensure
thar it adeguately compensates them for the time spent
on the affairs of the Bark. The Committee comprises
wo independent Non-Executive Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director.
The Committee meets at feast once every year or more
frequently as the Committee’s business may require.

Board Credit Commitiee

The Commiztee is responsibie for the review, sanctioning
and monitoring of all significant credit facilities in line with
the Bank's credit policies. The commitiee is composed
af three Mon-Executive Divectors, Managing Director,
Director ~ Corpprate Banking and Ceneral Manager
- Risk. The committee meets on a monghly basis or more
frequently as the business reguires.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

The following are the Management Committees which
comprise of the Managing Director, Exegutive Ditectors
and Senior Management.

Executive Management Committee

The Committee which is chaired by the Managing
Director and comprises of Executive Directors and all
Heads of Departments meets at monthly intervals or more
frequently as required ta review business and operational
aspects of the business an an ongoing basis. :

Management Credit Committee

The Committee is headed by the Managing Director and
includes the Director -~ Corporate Banking, Assistant
General Manager (Corporate Banking) General Manager
- Risk and Assistant General Manager - Risk. The
Committee meets at least monthly, or more frequently
as required by the Board threugh the Board Credit
Committee,

The functions of the Committee include appraisal of
credit facility applications and approval in line with the
Delagated Authority Limirs. The Commiztes also monitors
and reviews non-performing assets and ensures adequate
provisions are held against identifiable losses,

Assets and Liability Management Committes

The Bank has an Assets and Liability Management
Committee {ALCO), which is chaired by the Bank's
Managing Director and com]ﬁrises of Sentor Management
in relevant departmenss. The Committee mests monthly
or more frequently as appropriate o monitor and
manage the Bank's Balance Sheet 10 ensure that various
market, liguidity, interesr rates and operatidnal risks are
addressed.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to ensuring that Shareholders
and the financial rearkets are provided with full and timely
information abous its performance. This is usually done
through the distribution of the Group's annual report and
financial statements and the release of quarterly results
and notices in the national press.

in this regard, the Group complies with its obligations

contained in the Nairobi Srock Exchange's Listing -
guidelines and the Capital Markets Authority Act, 2002, )

J

Corporate Governance Report
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The Bank launched a new "Pamoja” account for
the NGO, and Church organizations with special
features tailored o the specific requirements of
these institutional depositors.

A state of the art IT banking application styled
'T 24 replaced the legacy Microbanker platform.
After an initial period of conversion related
glitches the new system has fully stabitized and
Is proving to be efficient and user Friendly.

Wwith the assistance of KPMG a job evaluation
exercise covering the entire organization was
completed leading to the introduction of a
scientific job grading methedology,

A new Strategic plan for the period 2007 —
2009 was developed by the senior management
ream with the active involvement of Ideation
Groups representing the entire work force. The
management team adopled new Vision and
Mission sratemenrts and an inspiring Rallying
Cry for the Bank. '

The Bank adopted enhanced risk management
processes during the year. Towards this end
a new Ant Money Laundering policy was
adopted and an enhanced Credit Policy was

prepared for implementaticn in early 2007,

During the year three non executive directors
[Mr.. Titus Naikuni , Mr. Andrew Gregory and
Mr. Fred Ojiambe} joined the Board while Mr.
A.P. Hamilran who served on the Board with
distinction for thirteen years retired from the
Board.
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DISCUSSIONS WITH STANDARD BANK
GROUP OF SOUTH AFRICA

Before | conclude | wish ro briefly refer 1o an approach
we received from Standard Bank Group of South Africa
late in 2006 suggesring 2 merger of Stanbic Bank Kenya's

operations with CFC Group’s operations.

Following an initial assessment of the merger proposal
and the potential synergias arising from & possibie
combination of the two businesses (including our
insurance and financial services operations} the parties
have compieted a paratlel due diligence exercise. We
will now proceed to discuss due diligence findings and
progress with negotiations. Subject to the negotiations
beirg successfui and after receipt of due regulatory
approvals we will convene an Extra-QOrdinary general
meeting of shareholders to deliberate on the merger

proposals,

In conclusion | would like to formally register my
appreciation to my colieagues on the Board, management
and staff of the CFC Group companies for their exemplary
commitment and dedication. 1 wish to thank cur loyal
customers and business partners for their patronage and
most impertantly you, shareholders for your unstinted

support.
Thank you.
C. Njonjc

28th March 2007
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Governance Report

Corporate governance is the process and strucrure used to
direct and manage the business affairs of CFC Bank and its
subsidiaries to achieve progperity and long term sharaholder
valuie.

The Board is commitied to ensuring compliance with all the
guidelines on corporate governence best praciices issued
by the Cenme for Carporate Governance and the Capital
Markets Authority {CMA). The Group complies with the
provisions of the Code of Canduct for Directars, Officers and
Employees in line with the Capital Markets Authority Acr
of 2002 in respect of guidelines on Corporate Governande
Practices by public listed companies. The Group also
complies with Central Bank of Kenya Prudential Guidelines
together with the Insurance Act and Nairobi Srock Exchange
Guidelines. The Group pursues professional standards and
norms in handling its business relationships. .

SHAREHOLDERS RESPONSIBILITIES

The Sharehoiders’ rele is to appoint the Board of Directors
and the External Auditors, This rofe is extended o holding
the Board accountable and responsible for efficient and
effective corporate governance.

BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Seven out of the ten Members of the Board, including the
{Chairman, are independent NMon-Executive Directors, The
Buoard of Directors is responsible for the governance of the
Croup and for conducting the business and operations of the
Group with integrity and in accordance with the generally
accepted corporate govémance practices, in a manner
based on transparency, accountabifity and respensibility.
The Board retains full responsibility for the direction and
control of the Bank and Group.

ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meers at least once every quarter for scheduled
meetings and on other occasions as may be necessary

to deal with specific matters that may require attention

i between the scheduled meetings. The Directors are
providaed with fuil and timely tnformation ta enable them w
discharge their responsibilities effectively. The Directors
attendance at Board mectings is satisfactory, with most
Directors attending at least 7 5% of the Board meetings held
m 2006 and one Director based overseas artending 50% of
the meerings held.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD'S AND
DIRECTORS' PERFORMANCE

In line with good Corporate Governance, a self assessment
and peer-review of the Board's and individiai Director's
performance has been undertaken for the vear ended 3t
December 2006. Performance review will be undertaken
on an annual basis going forward, to ensure the Board
remains effective in the discharge of its mandate as wel!
as provide a basis for further strengthening of individual
Directors parformance.

The Board has delegatad authority for the day o day
running of the Bank and its Subsidiary Companies to the
Managing Directors and the Senior Management of the
Bank and Subsidiary Companies. ;

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Beard has three standing commiitees that operate in
accordance with the terms of referenca set by the Board of
Directors. The comimittees are as follows:

Audit & Risk Committee

The principal Board Committee is the Audit & Risk
Committee which is chaired by an independent MNon-
Executive Director and comprises of two other independent
Mon-Executive Oirectors. The Committee meets at least
once every quarter. The mandare of the Audit Commitiee
is to oversce the Group's financial reporting polices and
internal controls; review and make recommendations on

(@) . Your success. Our inspiration
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management programs established to monitor regulatory
compliance and oversee the Group's cisk maragement
poticies end procedures.

Nomijnation and Remuneyation Committee

The MNomination and Remuneration Committee is
responsibie  for the appointmenss, induction and
remuneration of the Directors. Remuneration of the
Directors is based an responsibilities allocared to the
Directors, and is subject to annual reviews 10 enswre
that it adequately compensates them for the time spent
on rhe affairs of the Bank. The Committee comprises
two ndependent Non-Executive Directors, including
the Chairman of the Beard and the Managing Director.
The Commiztee meats at izast once every year of more
frequently as the Committee’s business may require.

Board Credit Commictee

The Commitcee is responsible for the review, sanctioning
and monitoring of 21l significant credit facilities in line with
the Bank's credit policies, The ¢committee is composed
of three Non-Executive Directors, Managing Director,
Director - Corporate Banking a2nd General Manager
- Risk. The commitiee meets on a monthly basis or more
frequently as the business requires.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

The following are the Management Committees which
comprise of the Managing Director, Executive Directors
and Senior Management.

Executive Management Comimnittes

The Committea which 35 chalved by the Managing

Director and comprises of Executive Directors and all

Heads of Departinents meets at monthly intervals or more

frequentiy as required w review business and operational
spacts of the business on an ongoing basis.

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statements (@)

Management Credit Committee

TFhe Committee is headed by the Managing Director ang
ncludes the Director — Corporate Banking, Assistant
Ganeral Manager {Corporate Banking) General Manager
-~ Risk and Assistant General Manager - Risk. The
Comimrittee meets at least monthly, or more frequently
as reguited by the Board through the Board Credit
Committee.

The fusctions of the Commitiee include appraisal of
credit facility applications and approval in line with the
Delegared Authority Limits. The Committee also monitors
and reviews noncperforming assers and ensures adeguate
provisions are held against identifiable losses.

Assets and Liability Management Commirtee

The Bank has an Assets and Liability Management
Committes [ALTD), which is chaited by the Bank's
Managing Director and comr}rises of Senior Management
in retevant departments. The Comimittee meets monthly
or more frequently as appropriate to monitor and
manage the Bank's Balance Sheert to ensure that varfous
mrarket, liquidity, interest rates and operational risks are
addressed.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed ro easuring that Shareholders
and the financial markets are provided with full and timely
information about its performance. This is usually done
rhrough the distribution of the Group's annuai report and
financial statements and the release of gquarterly rasults
and norices in the nationai press.

n this regard, the Group complies with its obligations
contained in the Nairobi Stock Exchange’s Listing
guidefines and the Capital Markets Authority Act, 2002, _

Corporate Governance Report
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) Our Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) mission statement is:

“We commit to assist in initiatives that improve the quality of life for the

community”

QOur corporate social responsibiliry is a way of integrating
the economic, sacial and environmental imperatives
of our acrivities. We devote considerable rasources to
create innovative and proactive solutions to societal and
environmental challenges most of which require iong
term commitment. The scope of our CSR initiatives is
focused in the following areas:

Community-basad business enterprise and
development initiatives
o Education sponsorship and mengoring
- Health seceor
. Enviranmental activities

. Support existing customers’ CSR initiatives
We continue to support the following initiatives:
505 VILLAGE - NAIROBI

We adopted a house in 2004 and we are committed
to providing for all the children’s needs in the house,
including visiting the children and presenting gifts on
special occasions. The long standing relationship with
the children in house number 13 helps them feal as
special as any other child in a Family set-up.

NAIVASHA HORTICULTURAL FAIR
This is an annual event thart raises funds for the less

fortunate members of the Naivasha community. We have
heen the main sponsor of the event since its inception.

KIJANI KENYA MUSIC FESTIVAL

The Kijani Kenya Trust, is a non-profit arpanization,
which works for health care, incliding HIV/AIDS, and
conservation in Kenya. The Trust’s objectives arc to assist
peaple in their fight to safeguard the resources of Kenya;
to protect and imprave the health and conservation of
Kenva through initiatives designed w help Kenvyans
help themsalves, We have been one of the key corporate
friends of the Trust including being the Title Sponsor for
the Porgy & Bess performance at Hell's Gare, Naivasha.

GLOBAL COMPACT INITIATIVES

We have, together with our subsidiaries, made a decision
0 support the ten {10Q) principies of the United Nations
Clobal Compact that are supposed to integrate solucions
0 societal and environmental challenges into corporare
structures, with respect to human rights, kabour rights,
the environment and anti-corruption. Global Compact
is an internationai voluntary corporate citizenship
initiative that brings companies fogether with the UN
agencies, labour and civil society organizations.

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statements (@)
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 3tst December
2006.

ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the gronp are the provision of
banking, insurance, financial and related services.

GROUP RESULTS KSH'000
Profit before taxation 1,366,912
faxation expense {426,772}
Profit after raxarion 940,140
Minority interest [154,068}_

MNet profit for the year transferred to reserves 786,072

DIVIDEND

The directors recommend a final dividend of Sh 1.25 per
share amounting to Sh 135,000,000 which, rogerhar with
the Sh 0.50 per share interim dividend, represents Sh 1.75
per share on the issued share capital for the vear ended
31st Decemnber 2006,

DIRECTORS

The present directors are shown on page 4.
Mr. AL P Hamilton resigned on 25th May 2006.

Mr. M. Blasetti retires by rotation under the provisions of
Arricle 90 of the Articles of Association and being eligible
offers himself for re-election

Mr. C. Njonjo, who is over 70 years, retires by rotation.
Special notice has been received by the Bank pursuant
to section 142 of the Companies Act, and resolution will
he considerad at the Annual General Mesting to propose
his re-election as director of the Bank in accordance with
secrion 186(5) of the Companies Act.

Mr. . G Kiereini, who is over 70 vears, retires by rotation.
Special notice has been received by the Bank pursianr
to section 142 of the Companies Act, and resolution will
be considered atr the Annuai Ceneral Meeting to propose
his re-election as director of the Bank in accordance with
section 186(5} of the Companies Act

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT - MERGER
BETWEEN CFC BANK AND STANBIC

The company and some of the majer shareholders of CFC
Banlk have entered into negortiations wirth Standard Bank
CGroup of Sourh Africa, which, if successfully concluded. wili
result in a significant expansion of CrC Group's banking
operations through a merger with Stanbic Bank Kenyz
Limired.

The conclusion of the proposed transaction is subject to,
amang other rthings, approval by the Minister of Finance,
the Central Bank of Kenya, the Monopolies Commissioner
fand any other regulators), satisfactory due diligence and
board and shareholders’ approvals.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Deloitte & Touche, having indicated their
willingness, continue in office in accordance with Sections

159 (2} of the Companies Act and subject to section 24 (1)
of the Banking Act.

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD

Secretary
Nairobi

28th March 2007
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The Companies Act requites the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and
the company as at the end of the financial year and of
the operating results of the group for that year. It also
requires the directors to ensuré that the group and the
company keep proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the group and the company. They are also responsible
for safeguardihg the assets of the group.

The directors are responsibie for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Internavonal Financial Reporting Standards. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
selecting and applying appropriaie accounting policies,
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Director

28th March 2007

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Repdrt and Financial _Sr'agemehrs (@)

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial
statements, which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimaies, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required
by the Companies Act. The directors are of the opinion
that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the financial affairs of the group and the company
and of its operating results, The directors further accepr
responsibitity for the maintenance of accounting records
which may be relied upon in the preparation of financial
siatements, as well as adequate systems of internal

financial control.

MNothing has come 1o the attendon of the directors to
indicate that the Bank and its subsidiaries will not remain
a poing concern for at least the next twelve (12) months

from the date of this statement.

Director

Statement of Diraectors’ Responsibilities
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We have audited the financial statements of CFC Bank
Limited ser out on pages 22 to 76 which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as ar 31st
December 2006, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidared and company statement of changes in equiry
and conselidated cash flow starement for the vear then
ended, togerher with the summary of significant accounding
policies and other explanatory notes, and have cbrained zif
rhe information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of

our audit.

RESPECTIVE RESPOWNSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The company's directors are responsible for the preparation
and fair presencation of these fnancial statements in
Financial Reporting

accordance  with  International

Standards and the provisions of the Kenyan Companies Act.

This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and

maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from marerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
selecring and applying appropriate accounting policies, and
making accounring estimates that are reasopable in the
circumstances. Our responsibility is to express an opinian
on these financial statements based on our audit.

BASIS OF OPINION

we conducted our audit in accordance with Internarional
Standords on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial starements are free froim material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures ro .obtain
audit ovidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on
our judgment and include an assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of rhe financial statements, whether
due 1o fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we considerad internal controls relevant o the entity’'s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in arder to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in
the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion an the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audic also inciudes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies vsed and the reasonableness of
accounting estimares made by direcrors, as well 2s evaluating
the overall presentation of the kinancial srarements,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis [or
cur opinion.

OPINION

I cur opinion:

{a) proper books of account have been kepr by the bank and
the bank's balance sheet is in agreement therewith;

(b} the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the srate of affairs of the bank and the group at 31st
December 2006 and of the profit and c¢ash fiows
of the group for the year then ended in accordance
with [nternational Financial Reporting Standards and
comply with the Kenyan Companies Act.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE

30th March 2007
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: sl 2005
Note Y 1 1 I Sh'000
o o : B stated
B {restated)
@ }
E o INTEREST INCOME 3 3025207 2,401,525
8 [~ INTEREST EXPENSE 4 {1.609,3%4) {881,875)
_ w s
*E -
vy M - 2,015,807 1,519,649
w wl NET INTEREST INCOME
= 3 Fees and commission income 1,007,493 516,171
o Foreign exchange trading income - 157,174 125,127
- Other operating income -5 3,496,524 2,702,531
2 -
e OPERATING INCOME 6,676,998 4,863,478
) Qperating expenses 4] (5,159,589} {3,935,838)
g Impairment losses on loans and advances 16 (171,966) {91,264)
z . .
bid QPERATING FROHT 1,345,443 836,376
4
< SHARE OF PROFIT IN ASSQCIATES 17 21,469 29,503
i . )
P
w PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1,366,912 865,379
s
- TAXATION 3 (426,772} (313,388)
-4
O PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 9 940,140 552,491
e
ATTRIBUTABLE T,
MINORITY INTEREST 154,063 38,256
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 786,072 464,195
940,140 552441
Sh Sh
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic 10 5.04 347
Diluted HY 5.04 3.17
DIVIDEND PER SHARE 1t 1.75 0.84

(@) Your success. Qur inspiration




2000 2005
Note -Sh'000 Sh'a00
{resrated)
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Cenrral Bank of Kenya 12 1,581,064 1,389,193
Ciovernment securities 13 11,173,093 4,548,033
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions i3 1,822,289 2,941,904
Lowns and advances 1o customers . 15 15,053,024 11,661,714
Investment in associares 17 108,889 109,533
Other assets 18 5,024,551 3,693,342
Taxation recoverable 31,927 43,463
Investiment properties 20 380,500 293,981
Other invesgmenis 21t 2,503,746 1,248,654
Property and equipment 22(a) 1,266,966 958,111
Operaring lease prepayment 23 31,579 31,853
Coodwilt 24 1,084,647 1,084,647
Intangible assers 25 197,104 15,505
Delerred tax asset 26(z) 109,283 69,247
Total assets 40,363,862 33,095,280
LIABILITIES
Customer deposits 27 17,928 427 14,794,012
Deposits due to banking institutions 28 1,686,880 . 1,398,575
Line of credit 29 304.500 443,756
Borrowings 3¢ 926,502 952412
Cther Habiliries 3 13,572,557 10,921,036
Taxation payable 119,419 58,589
Dreferred tax Hability 26(b) 137,010 125917
Dividends payable 83,050 5,506
Total habilities 34,758,345 28,699,833
CAPITAL RESOURCES
Share capitai 32(a) 780,000 730,000
Share premium 669,420 669,420
Capital reserve 266,921 254,570
Fair value reserve 394,438 (104,339}
Revaluation raserve 40.962 40,962
Revenue rasarve 2386612 1,911,922
Statutory reserves 230,349 166,197
Currency translation reserve {36,611) (25,162)
Equity attriburable ro equity holders of the parent 4,732,091 T 2,693,570
Minority interest 878226 701,877
Total equity 5610317 4,395,447
40,368,662 33,095,280

Total eguity and liabilities

The financial statements on pages 22 to 76 were approved by the board of directors on 28tk March 2007 and were

signed om its behalf by:

C. N:[Ohjo } .
M. Soundararajan 3 Directors
"R Yora } Company Secretary

Consolidated Balance Sheet

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statements (@) _
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2006 2005
Note SEGO0 Sh000 -
(restated}
pt ASSETS
g Cash and balances with Central Bank of Kenvya 12 1,577.337 1,383,362
Government securities 13 5,816,590 3.818,7G3
ﬁ Depaosits and balances due from hartking institutions 14 996,503 2,083,724
jal Loans and advances 10 Customers 15 15,053,024 11,661,714
E Other assets ' 18 280,879 349,216
5} Dua from subsidiary companies 248336 116,660
Ej Invesrment in subsidiary compantes 19 641,235 641,235
- Other investments 21 - 150,000
. Praperty and equipment 22(b} 649,767 586,606
™ Operating lease prepayments 23 30,887 31,250
b= Intangible assets 25 6,079 12,025
< Deferred tax asset 26(4) 91,473 55,780
< Total assers 25,392,115 20,393,395
LIABILITIES
Customer depasits 27 18,506,647 15300576
Deposits due to banking insticutions 28 1,686,850 1,394,673
Line of credit 24 304,500 143,756
Baorrowings 30 500,000 664,500
Qther {iabiliries 31 043,112 341,527
Taxation payable 73,093 2,139
Amount due to subsidiary companies . 5,046 22,658
Dividends pavable 83,050 5,506
Total liabilities 22,402,328 18,175,635
CAPITAL RESOURCES
Share capital 32(a) 780,000 780,000
Share Premium 669,420 669,420
Revanue reserye 1,510,970 1,277,656
Fair value adjustments (26.027) (9,316}
Statitory reserves 56,024 -
Shareholders’ funds 2,985,787 2,717,760
Total habitities and shareholders' funds 25,392,115 20,893,395
The financial staternents on pages 22 to 76 were approved by the board of directors on 28th March 2007 and were
" sighed on its behalf.by: )
C. Njonjo ) .
M. Soundararzjan ) Directors
R.R. Yora 1 Company Secretary
T (@) Your success. Qur inspirarion




Equity
_ateribueable to

Share Shave Capital  Fairvalue Revalua~- Revemne Scatutory  Propased Translation shareholders - Minority |
capital  Pramium reserve reserve tion surplus Reseryve veserves  dividends reserves  of che parént Intetest Tatal
SHODD Sh'0Bg Sh'ooo 35000 SH'000 K000 Shoao Skoo0 SK'000 Sh00e SHO0G Shoon -

Ap st fanuary 2005- As
praviously stared 720,000 - 231472 20,961 - 1442756 - 120800 -~ 25357185 501,413 3,037,134

Prior year adjustmeant

transfer from long term

insurance Business - - - 27,136 - 24491 207,541 - - 237118 130195 367.313
-reclassification of

exchange differences - - %373 - - (4,855) - - {8,873) (4,855} - (4.855)

As restated 720,000 - 240,045 48,097 - 1,440372 207541 120,800 (8,873} 2,767,982 631610 3,390552

Profit for the year - B - - - 464,195 - - - 464,195 88,296 552,491

Exchange differences arising
on transiation of a foreign

(@) Slupw»1El§ [¥idueuly pue Loday 1RALUY 9007 - PAMLITT HUEd D40

subsidiary - - - - - - - - (16,289) (16,289} - {16,289}
Fair value adjustinent on

quoted investmernts - - - (152,436) - (152,4386) 15,943 (136,493)
Property Revaluation - - - 63,280 - . - - - 63,280 - 63,280
eferred Tax on revaiuation - - - - (18,983) (18,983) (18,983}
Transter of Excess

Depreciation {4,764) 4,764 - - . - - -
Deferred Tax on Transker 1,429 (1.42%) - - - - - -
Transker to statutory reserves - - - - - 18,545 (18,545} - - - - -
Dividend - 2004 declared - - - - - - - [120,800) {120,500)  {21,192) (141,992)
Rights lssue by parent 60000 669,420 . - . . . - 729420 -~ 728420
Bonus issoe of shares by

subsidiary companies - - 12016 - - [12016) - - B - - -
Defarrad tax on statutary

reserves [22,7%9) (22,799 (12780}  {35579)
Transfer from revenue raserve - - 2,509 - - {2,509 - - - - - -
At 315t December 2005 780,000 669420 254,570 {104,339} 40,962 1911922 166,197 - {25162y 3,693,570 701877 4393447

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T DECEMBER 2006



@
Qo
>
j=)
=
5
wn
[
£
b
B
2
E
5
b
3
=
]
k=]

Equity
attiibutable to

solidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T DECEMBER 2006

Share Share Capital Fair value Revaluation  Revenue Statutory Translation sharehaiders Minority
capital  Premium reserve reserve surplus Resarve raserves reserves  ofthe parent  Jnterest Total
SK0% ShoDg Shoo0 Sh000 Sh'd00 Sh'oon Sh'000 Sh'000 SWQ00  Sh'000 Sh'000
At st lanuary 2006 — as g . . . . o 4 -
previously stated 780,000 669,420 233,496 {192,823) 40,962 1,894,027 - - 3425082 551376 3,976,458
Prior year adjustmant
- transfey from long verm Y .
business - - - 86,160 - 16,131 166, 197 - 268,488 150501 413,989
- rransfer (o staturory reserve-
- reclassification of exchange
differences - - 21,074 2324 1,764 - (25762) - - -
As restated 780,000 669,420 254,570 (104,339} 43,962 1,511,922 166,157 (25,162} 3693570 701,877 4395447
'rofit for the year - - - - - 786,072 - - 786,072 154,068 340,140
Exchange differences arising an .
translation of a toreign subsidiary - - - - - - {11.449) (11,449) (18328} (29777}
Fair value adivstmeont on quoted - .
investments - - 499,987 - (25838} - - 474,149 50,393 524,542
Ravalugtion realised on disposal . - ;
of invesments - - - t1,210) - - - - (1,210)  (1,937) {3,147
Dividend
- final for 2005 declared - - - - - {131,040 - - (131,040} (27.618) (158,658)
- interim 2006 dedlared - - - - - (78,000} - - {78,000 - 173,000)
~ trassfer to/fram statutory
reserve - - - - {5%,036) 59,086 - - - -
- other rransfers - - 12,354 - - (A 5,066 - - 19770 19,770
At 3 1st December 2006 780,000 069,420 266,921 394,438 40,962 2,386,612 230,349 (36.611) 4,732,091 878226 5610317

Capital reserves result from capitalisation of revenue reserves through bonus issue of shares by subsidiarres,

Revaluation reserve compises actumulated strplus on revatugtion of propeny and equipment and fair vatue adiusunents Telating 1o availabie for sale investmenks.

The retained earnings represent accurnulated profits setained by the group after payment of dividends to the shareholders.

The prior yosr adjustment relages e long ternt insurance business sratytary reserve adjustment, The statutory reserve is not distributable,
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Share Share Fair value Revenue Statutory

capital Premivm adjustments reserve reserve Total

Sh'pog Sh'000 Sh'000 Sh'pon Sh'000 Sh'000

At 15t January 2005 720,000 - - 1,102,743 - 1,822,743
Rights issue 60,000 GEHO,A20 - - 729,420
Transfer o statﬂmry reserves - - - - -
Revaluation deficit - - {9,316} - - (9.316)
Prafit for the year - - - 295,713 - 295,713
Dividend declared - 2004 - - - (120,800} - {120,8GG)
At 3tst December 2005 750,000 B6G, 420 {9316} 1,277,656 - 2,712,768
At 1st lanuary 2006 780,000 669,420 [9,316) 1,277,656 - 2,717,760
Transfer to statutory reserves - - - (50,024] 56,024 -
Revaluarion deficic - - (172,311) - - {17.311)
Profit far the year - - - 498,378 - 498,378
Dividend declared — 2005 - - - {131,040) - (131,040)
Interim dividend paid - 2006 - - . (78,000) - {73,000
669,420 (26,627) 1,510,970 56,024 2,989,787

At 31st December 2006 780,000

Bank Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2006
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T DECEMBER 2006

hHow

onsolidated Cas
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2006 2005
Note . Shodd Sh'00D
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 34a) 367.285 2,015,253
Iﬁ%_&ion paid (382,909). {(365,057)
_Ner cash [usec_! in)/generated from operating activities (15,624} 1,650,196
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additians to property and cguipment (426,704) (267,386)
Additions to intangible assels (190,376) (12,134)
Proceeds from sale of equipment 18,213 3,687
Proceeds from the sale of intangibie assets - 1,010
Additions to investment properties (3%) {32,213)
Met cash used in investing acrivities (598,902) [307,0386)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (121,496} (120,132}
Dividends paid to minority (27,618) {21,102}
Proceeds from rights issue - 729,420
Net {repayments)/proceeds from borrowings (25,910) 329412
Dividend from associate 9,265 .4‘655
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities _ (175,759 927,163
Exchange rate zdjustments (6,292) (8,464)
NET [DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (796,577} 1,256,859
C_ASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 15T IANUARY 2385013 138,154
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 315T DECEMBER  34(b) 1,598,436 239513

(@ Your success, Our inspiration




ACCQOUNTING POLICIES

The financia! statements have been prepared in
accordance with Iternational Financial Reporting
Standards. The principal accounting policies adepred,
which remain unchanged except for the change n
accounting policy on statunory geserves, are set aut
below:

Adoption of new and revised international financiat
reporting standards (IFRS)

At the date of authorisation of these financiat
statements, the following standards and interpretations

were in issus but not yer effective:
= IFRS 7 on Financial Instroments Disclosures
* IFRS § on Operating Segments
= IFRIC 8- Scope of IFRS 2
- IFRIC 9 - Reassessment of £mbedded
Derivatives

. IFRIC 10 - Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

The adoptiom of these standards and interprerations,
when affective, will have no material upact on the
financial statements of the group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries:
CFC Financial Services Limited, CFC Holdings Limited,
CFC Tnvestments Limited, Equity Stock Brokers
Limited. The Heritage ALL Insurance Company
Limited, Azali Limited, The Heritage ALl Insurance

Company (T) Limited and CFC Life Assurance Limited.

The financial statements of the bank and its subsidiaries
have been made up to 3 1st December. A listing of the
bank's subsidiarias i3 set out in note 19,

CFC Bank Limiied - 2006 Annual Report and Tinancjal Statemenrs (@) —

Subsidiary undertakings, which are those entities
in which the group has an interest of more than
haif of the voting rights or otherwise has power to
exarcise control over the operartions are consolidared.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the dare on which
congrol is transferred ta the group. All iner-company
transactions are efiminared.

Investments in associates are accounted for by
the equity method of accounting. Associares are
undertakings over which the group has significant
influence, but which it does not controi.

Coodwilt

Iniiafly goodwiil is measured cost, being the excess of
the cost of the businass combination over the acquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of the idemifiable assets,
ifabifities and contingent liabilities. After initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumuiated impairment losses.

if the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cosr of the business combination, the

group:

{8) reassesses the identification and mcasurement of
the acquiree’s identifiable assecs, liabilities and
conungent habilities and rhe measurement of the
051 of the combination; and

(b) recognises immediately in profit or loss any excess
remaining after that reassessment.

Invesiments in subsidiary companies

invesiments in subsidiary companies in the parent’s
separate financial statements (details of which are
disclosed in note 19) are stated at Cost less provision
for impairment loss where applicable. )
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T DECEMBER 2006

MEeNts (Continued

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

Investment properries

Investmient praperties are stated at open market value
and are por depreciated. Valuations are carried out
every threc years by independent valuers and updated
avery year by the directors. Changes in their carrying
amounts are accounted for in the income statement in
accordance with [nternational Accounting Standard
No. 40, Invastment Properties.

Revenue recognition
Banking

interest income is accrued on 2 time basis, by reference
1o the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

F.ees and commission income are recognised at the
time of effecting the transactions.

Insurance

Premium incoma is recognised on assurmption of risks,
and includes estimates of premiums due but not yet
received. less an allowance for cancellations, and less
unearned premium, Unearned premivms represent the
proportion af the premigms writien n periods up (o
the accounting date that relates to the unexpired terms
of policies in force at the balance sheet date, and is
computed using the 365™ mathod.

Originated loans and provision for loan impairments
Loats amd advancas are recognised when cash is
advanced to bovrowers. They are categorised as

originated \nans and carried at amortised cost.

Provisions for loan impairment are established if there
is objective evidence that the bank wiil not be able

to cojfect all amounts due accerding o the original
contraciual terms of foans. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the carrying amount and
the recoverable amount, being the present value of
expected cash flows, inciuding amounts recoverable
from guarantees and collateral, discounted at the
original effective inrerest rate af loans,

Identified provisions are recognised for loans and
advances that are individually significant. Unidentified
provision is measured and recognised on a portfolio
basis where there is objective evidence that probabla
losses are present in components of the Joan portfolio
ar the balance sheet date, This is estimated based uporn
hiscorical parterns of losses in each component, the
credil ratings allocated to the borrowers and reflecting
the current economic climate in which the borrowers

operate,

When a loan is deemed uncollectible, it Is wrirten off
agamst the related provision for impairment losses.

Subsequent recoveries are credited wo the provision

for impatrment losses in the profit and loss account, If
the amount of the impairmem subsequenty decreases
due 1o an event occurring after the write-down, the
release of the provision is credited to the provision for
impairment losses in the profit and loss account.

Sratutory reserves

IAS 39 requires the group o recognise an impairment
loss when there is objective evidence that loans and
advances are impaired, However, Central Bank of
Kenya prudential guidelines reguire the bapk 1o set
aside amounts for provisions on loans and advances in
addition ta those losses that Rave heen racopnised,

Under IAS 34, any such amounts set aside represent
appropriations of retained earnings and not expenses
in determining profit or loss. These amounts are dealt

with in the statutory Teserve.

(@ Your success. Our tspirarion




ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
Statutory reserves {continued)

This is a change in accounting policy from previous
vears. Previously, excess provisions made by rhe
bank to comply with the prudential guidelines were
recognised as an expense in the income statement,
This change in accounting policy has been applied

retrospectively.
Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Depreciation is calculated Lo write off the cost of
property and equipment in equal annuat instalments
aver their estimated useful lives. The annual rates
generally in use are:

Building 2% - 4%

Mortar vehicles 25%

T'urnitire and equipment 12.5% - 30%

Operating fease prepayments

Payments to acquire lcascheld interest m land
are treated as prepaid operating lecase rentals and
amortised over the period of the lease,

Intangible assets - computer software development

COsCs

Costs incurred on computer software are inidally
accounred for ar cost as intangible assers and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight line basis ovar the estimated

useful lives ar an annual rate of 30%.

Taxation

Income rax expense represents the sum of the current
rax ang deferred taxation.

Currenr taxation is provided on the basis of the results
for the year as shown in the financial statements

adjusted in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred income tax is provided, under the liability
method, for all temporary différences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
values for financial reporting purposes. Currently
enacted tax rates are used o determine deferred

INCOMeE tax.
Foreign currencies

Assets and iiabilities in foreign currencies are expressed
in Kenya shillings ar the rates of exchange ruiing at the
balance sheer date. Transactions in foreign currencies
during rhe year are converted at the rates ruling at the
time of the transactions. The resulting profits or losses
are dealr with in the income statement.

Foreign subsidiary

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign
subsidiary are accounted for as part of changes in
equity,

Impairment

At each balance sheer date, the group reviews the
carrying amounts of its financial tangible and intangibie
assets 1o datermine whether there Is any indication that
those assers have suffered an impairmenr loss. If any
such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated and an impairment loss is recognized in
the income statement whenever the carrying amount

of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities arc initially recognised
on the company’s balance sheet at cost using
settlement date accouniing, when the company has
become a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financiol assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity
investments; and available-for-sale financial assets.
Managemenr derermines the classification of i

investments at infia recognition.

{a) Financial assers ar fair value through profit or foss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated ac fair value
through profit or loss at inception, A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principafly for the
purpose of sefling in the short term or if so designated
by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for rrading uniess they are designated as hedges.

(b) Loans and receivables

ipans and receivables arc non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor
with no intention of trading the receivable.

{c} Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity  investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group's manzgement has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

L ]

Were the Group to sell other than an insignificant
amount of heid-to-marurity assets, the entire category

wottld be tainted and reclassified as available for sale.

{d} Available-for-sate

Awvailable-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in interest rates, exchange rates Of equity prices.
Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held to maturity and available
for sale are recognised on trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits te purchase or sell the asset.
Loans are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assers
not carried at fair vatue throogh profit or loss, Financial
assets arc derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantialty ail risks and
rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value, Loans and receivables and held-
ro-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assefs at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are included in the income statement in the period in
which rthey arise. Gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised directly in eguity, until the financial
asser is derecognised or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity should be recognised in profit or loss. However,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is reco;gnised in the income statement. Lvidends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement when the entiey’s right to receive
payment is established.




ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINLUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

The fair values of guoted investments in active markerts
are based on current bid prices. If the market for a
financial assatis not active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
technigues, These include the use of recent arm's
length transactions, discounted cash fow analysis,
optioh pricing models and other valuation techniques
commoenly used by market participants.

Impatement and urcolfeccabilicy of financial ussets

At each balance sheer date, all financial assets are
subject tox review for impairment.

IE it is probable that the company will not be able to
coliect all amounts due{principal and interest) according
1o the contractual terms of loans, receivables, or held-
ro-maturity invesiments carried at amortised cost, an
impairment or bad debt loss has occurred. The amount
ofthe loss is the difference between the asset's catrying
amount and the present value of expecred future cash
flows discounted art the financial instrument's original
effective interest rate (recoverable amaunt). The
carrying amoun of the asser s reduced 1o its estimated
recoverable amount through use of the provision For
bad and doubrtful debts account, The amount of the
loss incurred 15 included in income statement for the

period.

If a loss on 2 financial asset carried at fair value
(recoverable amount is below original acquisition
cost) has been recognised directly in equity and there
is objective evidence that the asser is impaired, the
cumnulative et loss that had been recognised directly
in equity is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement for the period even though the
financial asset has not been dereceghised.

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statements (@) ——/

Financial Liabilities

After initial recognition, the company measures
all financial liabilities, including customer deposits
other than liabilities held for trading, at amortised
cost. Liabilities held for trading {financial liabilities
acquired principally for the purpose of generating a
profit Erom short-term fluctuatians in price or deales’s
margin} are subseque_nrly measurad at fair value,

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
rerms of the fease transfer substantiaily all the risks
and rewards of ownershipg to the lessea. AH other
leases are classified as operacing leases,

lessar

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivabies at the amount of the group
net investment in the ieases. Finance lease income
is allocated o accounting periods so as o refiect
a constant periodic rate of return on the group ret
investment outstanding in respect of the feases.

- Rental income from operating leases is recognised

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

As lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
3s assers of the growp ar their fair value at the date
of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is inciuded in the balance sheat as a finance
lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the
difference berween the rotal leasing commitmants and
the fair value of the assers acquired, are charged fo the
income statement over the term of the relevant Jease
$0 as 1o produce 3 constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining halance of the obligations for sach
aecounting period. o
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing [continued)

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged ro
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Retirement benefir obligations

Each operating company in the groep operates a
defined contribution retirement benefits scheme, the
assetsofwhichareheld inseparate trustee administered
funds. The schemes are funded by contributions from
employees and the group companies. The amounts
of contributions are determined by the respeciive
scheme rules.

The group also contributes (o a statutory defined
contribution pension scheme, the Matjonal Social
Security Fund. Contributions are determined by ocal
statute.

The group's contribution in respect of rerirement
benefits obligations are charged to the income
staternent when incuried.

Segmental reporting

Segmental information is based on the primary formart
representing two business segments - banking and
related services and insurance and secondary format
representing geographical segment,

Segment results include revenue and expenses
directly awributable to a segment.  Segment results
are determined before any adjustment for minotity
interest.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise those operaring
assats and liabilities that are directly atributable to

. - the_segment or can be allocared 1o the segment on a

reaséFnable basis. Segment assers are determined after

deducting related aliowances thart are reported as direct
offsets in the group’s balance sheet,

Capital expenditure represents the total cost incurred
during the vear to acquire segment assets that are
expected 0 be used during more than one period
{property and eguipment).

Reserves

Capital reserve results from capitalization of revenue
reserves through bonus issues of shares by subsidiaries,
mransfers from Tevenue reserve in accordance with
jegislation in the insurance industry and exchange
differences refating to translation of the erdinary share
capitaf and the capital reserve of foreign subsidiaries.
Distribution of the amounts arising from compliance
legislation is restricted by the relevant iegislation while
other capitahised amounis are nor distributable.

Fair value adjustments resuic from measurementc of
available for sale financial instruments at fair value in
accordance wirh IAS 39, Gains recognised in eguity are
unfealised and ave not distributable,

Share premium results from issue or shares recognised
i equity aT a premium

Revaluarion surpius comprises accumulared surplus on
revaluation of property and eguipment. The reserves
are not distributabla

The retained earnings represent accumilated profits
retzined by the group after payment of dividends 1o
the shareholders. The reserve is distributabie.

Comparatives

Where npecessary, comparative figures have been
adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the
current year, In particuiar, comparative figures have
becn restated to regognise the change in accounting

-palicy on statureny reserves,
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2006 2005

SHOW SHOM

INTEREST INCOME
L.oans and advances 1,650,897 1,455,835
Government secusities 1,104,676 821,104
Placemenis and bank balances 176,326 100,862
Other 93,302 23,724

3,025,201 2,401,525
INTEREST EXPENSE
Cusromer deposits 736,544 701,926
Deposits and placements from other banks 180,520 86,437
interest on borrowed funds ' 91,930 93,513

1,009,394 881,876
OTHER QPERATING INCOME
Insurance premiums earned 2,808,264 2.467,952
Profit on disposal of quoted aquity investments 185,597 93,411
Profit on saie of government securities 93372 7495
Dividends from quoted equity investments 53,702 37612
Rental income 38,979 31,046
Profit on disposal of aquipment 3816 1,379
Profit on disposal of intangible asset ‘ - 432
Fair value gain on invesiment properties 46,370 24,678
Other income 266,424 38,476

3,496,524 2,702,531

CFC Bank Limited - 2606 Annual

Report and Financial Statemeants (@) —
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2006 2005
SHO00 SHOGH
W
o
2 6 OPERATING EXPENSES
o .
w nsurance claims mctiree . , 83091
| lai d 2,373,000 1,989,133
; Staff costs [Note 7) 1,065,362 805,191
S Qrther costs 876,658 810,011
w Depreciation 121,959 110,725
E Fees and commissions 509,173 103,413
v :- Directors’ emoluments:-
J m -
Tu A as directors 14,388 9,980
-G' i as executives 95,417 42,441
g ; Rent ' 59,973 23,047
_E L Amortisacion —intangibla assets 9,671 13,089
b : - operating lease-leasehold land 374 360
g >"':’ Contribution: to Depasit Protection Furd 22,014 18,865
= -
oM™ Auditors’ remuneration ~ parenl 2,200 2,000
o = - subsidiaries ) 8500 7.583
3
= § 5,159,589 3,935,838
Z M
7 STAFF COSTS
Salaries and benefits . 932,426 761,075
Pension contribytions - defined contribution scheme 54,165 41,802
Termination benefits 635 1,033
Narional Social Security Fund (NSSF) 1,184 1,281
Other staff costs _ 76,952 -
1,065,362 865,191

[~ (@) Your success, Our inspirgifon




2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The group is currently organised into two major divisions - banking and related services and insurance. These
divisioms are the basis on which the grotp reports its primacy segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

- Banking and related services - taking deposits, lending to customers and provision of financial, advisory and stock
broking services.

Insurance ~ insuring visks for all classes of insurance business.

{a) Primary reporring formar - business sepments

BANKING AND RELATED . : o
L R INSURANCE - - . GROUP.
. 7 SERVICES ° A L
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Sh000 Shood sh'o00 Sh'000 Sk'000 Shoa0
ficome 3150516 2,162,103 4,557,345 3,612,754 7.M7.862 5,774,857
Expanditure {2,466,202) (1,768,386} (3,874,748) {3,140,592) (6.340,950) (4,908,978)
Segment resuit 684,314 393,717 682,597 472,162 1,366,912 865,879
Taxation : - {426,772} (313,388}
Profic afler taxation 940,140 552,491
Assers 26,332,864 21,145,708 14041711 11,949,572 40,368, 662 33.005280
Goandwill 1,084,647 - - 1,054,647 1,084,647 1,084,647
Liabilities 22,908,457 18,230,218 11.828,183 10,503,811 34,758,345 28,699,833
Caniral expenditure 168,762 215,046 448,292 52,340 617,080 267,386
Denreciation and
amOrtisation 91,154 79,151 40,851 45,023 132,004 124,174

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statements @)
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SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

= B
E = {b} Secondary reporting format — Geographical segments
= =
o~ . ‘ .
£ ” The group's operaiions are lotated in Rerya and Tanzanda. The Tanzanian subsidiary contribuies over 10% of the
“ group’s consolidated income,
v Bl
w B
l
&)
w
a -
. 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
- Sh'000 Sh'oon Sh'ooe Sh'000 Shoopo Sh'a00
o
8 income 7,035,475 3127818 672,386 647,039 7,707,862 5,774,857
a ' )
5 Expenditure {5,782,103) (4.345,1973 (558,845] (563,781) | (6,340,950} (4,908,978)
o
s Segment result - 1,253,370 782,621 113,541 53,258 1,366,912 865,879
wl
g [ J 3388)
Taxation . 426,772 (313,38
tud — __1___________
= g
s Profit after taxation 940,140 552,401
74
E Assels 38,238,585 31,242,529 2,135,990 1,869,665 40,368,662 33,005,280
Cooodwill 1,084,647 1,084,647 - 1,084,647 084,647
Liabilities 32,994,605 27.549,978 1,742,035 1,585,758 34,758,345 28,699,833
Capiral expenditure 622,028 256,564 14,933 10,522 617,080 207,386
Depreciation and ] )
amortisation 120,600 . 114,385 11,405 9,78% 132,004 124174
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TAXATION

2006 20605
SH'O00 SH'000
[2) Taxarion expense
Current tax at 30% 460,275 330,641
Prior year pverstatement - {762)
460,275 329,879
Deferred.raxation
(Credit) (Note 26{a}) (37.852) {16,551)
Dehit/ (Credit) (note 26(b)} 4,349 @
(33,503) {16,491)
426,772 313,388
(b) Raconciliation of taxation expense to expected
tax based on accounting profit
Accounting profit before taxation 1,366,912 865,879
Tax at the applicable rate of 30% . 410,073 259,764
Deferred tax under provided in prior periods 999 8,847
Prior year under provision of current tax {1,076} (762}
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 46,646 58,426
Tax cffect of changas in tax rates {1,034) _
Tax effecr of income not taxable (40,426) (12,887
Other items resulting in reduced tax charge 11,590 -
426,772 313,388

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

Profir after taxation dealt with in the books of the Bank'is Sh 488,378,000 (2005-5h 295,713,000)

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annugl Report and Financial Statements (@)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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1 I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2006

10

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the vear.. B
- 2006

2005 E

Earnings {Sh'000} :
Earnings for purposes of basic earnings per share 786,072 464,195 ‘
Number of shares {In thousands) ' ' |
Number of ordinary shares for purposes of basic earnings per share {thousands} 156,000 156,000

" Earnings per share (Sh) )
Basic and dilured 5.04 3.7 :

11

|
|
Sl

T (@) Your suctess. Qur inspiration
- i :

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on continuing operations artribuzable to the ordinary
equity holders of the parent entity. There were no discontinued operations during the year.

Earnings per share is calculated based on the profit attributable o ordinary equity holders of the parent enrity of .
Sh 786,072,000 {2005 -Sh 464,195,000) and 156,600,000 (2005 -5h 146,433.000) weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year. '

Basic earnings per share is the same as diluted earnings par share,

DIVIDEND PER SHARE .

Proposed dividends are not accounted for untit they have been ratified at the Annual General Meeting. At the meeting
10 be held on 25th May 2007, a final dividend is to be propesed in respect of 2006 of Sh 1.25 per share (2005 - Sh
0.84 per share} amounting to a total of Sh 195,000,000 (2005 - Sh 131,040,000). The financial statements for the
vear ended 31st December 2006 do not reftect this resolution which wili be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as
an appropriation of retained profits in the year ending 31st December 2007,

Aq interim dividend of Sh 0.50 per share representing ar amount of Sh 78,000,000 [2005: Nil) was paid in December
2006.
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DIVIDEND PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

2006 2005
Sh000 Sh'000

The movement in unclaimed dividend is as follows:
Ar st fanuary 5,506 4.838
Finat dividend declared 131,040 120,800
Interim dividend declared 78.000 -
Dividend paid _ {131,496) (120,132}
Az 315t December 83,050 5,506

Payment of dividends to members with shareholding below 12.5% is subject to withholding tax at the rate of 5% for
residents and 10% for non-residents.

CASH AND BALAMNCES WITH CENTRAL BANK OF KENYA

2006 2003 2006 2005

SH000 SH000 SH'000 SHOM

Cash in hand 257,673 148,373 253,947 142,572

Balances with Central Bank of Kenya: Cash ratio 1,072,497 331,453 1,072,492 431,453
requirementt

Othier {available to finance group operations] 250,899 309,367 250,898 309367

1,581,064 1,389,193 1,577,337 1,383,392

The cash ratio balance is nop interest earing and is based on the value of deposits as adjusted by the Central Bank of
Kenya reguirements, Thesa funds are not available fo finance the Bank's day to day operations.

GOVERNMENT SECURITIES

2005
SH'000 SH'00G SH'O00 SH'000

Treasury Bills & Bonds

(a) Maturing wirhin 90 days of balance sheer date . 954,456 357,719 444200 338,969
Maturi ng after 90 days of the balance sheet dare 10,218,637 5,190,314 ] ?2,3_9@ 3,478,734
11,173,093 9,548,033 _5,31_.5;530 3,818,703
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13 GOVERNMENT SECURITIES {CONTINUED)

2005

SH'000 SH'000 SH000 SH'009
Classification of government securitias
Held to waturiy 6,384,387 8,086,175 2,374,700 2,356,845
Awailable for sale 4,788,706 1,461,858 2,841 390 {461,858
Total 11,173,093 9,548,033 5,816,590 3,818,703

‘The effactive interest rate on treasury bills as at 313t December 2006 was 7.95% par annum (2005 - 9%).

the Financial Statements (Concinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T DECEMBER 206068

The effective interest rate on treastry bonds as at 31st December 2006 was 9.28% per annum {2005 - 9%).

DEPOSITS AND BALANCES DUE FROM BANKING INSTITUTIONS

Balances due from banking institurions 765,375 535,384 436,989 156,119
Deposits dug from banking institutions 1,056.914 2.406,520 559,514 1,927,605
1,822,289 2,941,904 996,503 2,083,724

The weighted average effective interest rate during the year for deposits due from banking institurions at 31st December
2006 was 6% (2005- 5%) and nil for balances due from banking institutions.
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LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

2006 2005 g

Sh'0aGo Sh'000 §

g

GROLIP AND BANK <

: 2

Finance leases [(Note 15 (a)} 5,018,949 4,329,351 o

Loans, advances and bills discounted {Note 15(b}) 10,459,839 7,601,320 QEJ

Q

15,478,788 11,930,671 *af

Impairment lasses on foans and advances {Nate 1&] ) {425,764} ] (268,95 ?} a

15.033,024 11,661,714 B

J

o=

. <

Analysis of gross loans and advances by marturity: =

- ey

_ e

{a) Finance lease receivables <}

_—

Minimum Present value A

lease of minimum 8

paymenis fease payments %

2006 2005 2006 2005 et

Sh000 SO0 SRO0O SH00D &

Z

Amounss received under Finance leases:

Within one year 953,002 2,279,548 ' 953,002 2,279,548
Qwer one year to three years 3,267,746 1,892,721 3,267,746 1,892,721
Qver three years 798,201 157,082 798,201 157,082
5,018,249 4,329,351 5,018,949 4,328,351

The company enters into finance leasing arrangements for certain plank, equipment and motor vehicles. The average
term of finance leases entered into is hetween 2 o 3 years.

Unguaranteed residual values of agsers under finance leases are estimated at nil (2G05: nifj.

The interest rate inberent in the lease is variablée at the contract date for all of the lease term. The weighred average
interast rate on finance lease receivables at 31st December 2006 was 14% {2005 15%).

The related party transactions and balanges are covered under note 44 and concentrarions of advances to customers

are covered under note 40.

CFC Bank Limited -~ 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statements (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2006



A (R — . N

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

iMEn(gs (Continued)
DECEMBER 2006

2006 2005
Sk'0G0 Sh'o00

[P) Loans, advances and bills discounted:
Maturing within one year 6.846.558 6,125,780
Over one year to rhree years 1,846,425 1,053,811
Owver three years 1,766,856 421,729
10,459,839 7,601,320

{2005 - 13%).

493,221,000 {2005 - Sh 243,738,000).

16 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31537

The effective interesr rate on foans ard advances t custorners as at 31st December 2006 was 13%

The aggregate balance of impaired oans and advances to customers as at 31st 2ecember 2006 was
Sh 1,356,406,000 (2005 - Sh 748,807,000 1. These are included in the balance sheet {net of impairment jossas) at Sh

2006 2005

5000 SK'000

Af 15t }an_uary 26R,957 259,8_Qj
Pravisions made during the year 171,966 102,141
Recoverias qnci provision no longer required “ (1 0,87ﬂ
171,966 91,264

Provision on reinstated loans i - 4,003
Amounts wrirten off during current year (15,159} (%_2932
At 31st December 425,764 268,957

— (@) Your svccess, Qur inspiration
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

GROUP

Af st January
Share of profit for the year
Dividends received

Currency sranslation

At 31st December

2006 2005
Sh'000 Sh'000
109,533 107,095
21,469 29,503
(9,265) {4,655)
(12.848) {22,410)
108,889 109,533

Srrategis fnsurance Company {T) Limited and Aliiance Insurance Company (T) limited are associates of Heritage
All Insurance Company [T} Limired in which it owns 24% and 45% of the shares respectively. Strategis Insurance
Company started trading in February 2003 and has a year end of 30™ September.

Alliance Insurance Company (T) limited became an associate in 2004 and has a year end of 30« September.
Investment in associates has been accounted (or by the equity method of accounting.

OTHER ASSETS -
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sh'000 SH000 SH'000 Sh'000
\tems in Transit - - - 134,927
Insurance premium recelvables 542,320 457,257 - -
Due from reinsurers 208,213 168,348 - -
Deferred insuratce commission 108,715 624149 - -
Reinsurance shate of technical provision 1.364,218 1,437,343 - -
Trade receivables and prepayments 1,314,078 405,771 280,879
Other 1,487,007 1,161,864 - 164,28%
3,693,342 280,879 349,216

5,024,551
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES ’
= B
< BANK
= < .
= M Beneficial
5 « Ownhership Country of 2006 2005
= : Company  incorporation Sh000 Sh'0o0
2B R
q:) o CFC Fingncial Services Limited 100% Kenya 100,530 100,530
E Q Equity Stock Brokers Limited 10G% Kenya - -
et
o = The Heritage ALL Insurance Company Limited 64 03% Kenya 65,705 65,705
=1 . Azali Limited 64 (18% Kenya
Uh'}‘ - The Heritage AL Insurance Company (T) Limired 38.45% Tanzania - -
i CEC Holdings Limired 90.48% Kenya 475,000 475,000
' ¥
.‘E i CEC Life Assurance Limited 96.58% renya - -
;é o CFC invesiments Limited 100% Kanya - -
o e ' T _,_
[, 641,235 641,235
o
:S investment in subsidiary companies ave stated at <ost less provision far impairment loss where applicable,
-
w The Heritage Afl. [nsurance Company {T) Limired is 2 60% subsidiary of The Haritaga AlL [nsurance Company
E Limited, CFC Life Assurance Limitad is 2 100% subsidiary of CTC Holdings Ltd, while Azali Limited is a 1008%
o subsidiary of Heritage ALl Insurance Company Limited.
= . o . L -
. Equity Stotk Brokers Limited is a 100% subsidiary of CFC Financial Services Limited.

204 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2006 2005
SK'O00 Sh'00o
GROUF
Freehold properties
At 1st January 293,981 152,250
Additions resulting from acquisitions 35 32.213
Recifassification from property and equipment 40,114 81,044
Reciassification from operating lease prepayments - 3,796
Net gain from fair value adjustments 45,370 ] 24,678
At 31st December 380,500 293,981

Investment properties were revalued as at 31st December 2006 by Lioyd Masika Limited, independent registered
valuer on an open market basis, The resuitant revaluation gain net of deferred tax was credired to the income

statemnent.
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OTHER INVESTMENTS [ _

2006 ) 20(.1.5“ 177 2008 2005 §

Sh'ot0 Sh'000 Sh'o00 Sh'oio §

g

Quoted equity investments &

at mid -market value 2,344,502 1,110,602 - - ﬂ

]

Linguoted equity investments ar cast 120,959 138,052 - - g

W

- Commercial papercarporate honds _ E

And other investments 38,285 - - 150,000 i

S —— | - m

2,503,746 1,248,654 - 150,000 =

s

The effective interest rate on commercial paper, corperate bonds and other investments as at 31 December 2006 47}

was 8.08% (2005 - 10%). ' ' R=

LL.

—ch

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT ]

o]

=

(a} GROUP W

Building Furniture @

on leasehold : Maotor and il

Jand vehicles equipment Toial o

Sk'G00 Sh'00G Sh'060 Sh'000 Z

COST/VALUATION

At 1st January 2005 673,865 79.421 664,962 1,423,248
Currency adjustment - {1,729} (4.540) {6,269}
Additions - 33138 234,248 267.336
Transfer to investment property {81,044) - - (81,044)
Transfer to intangible assets - - [300) (300)
Reclassification {20,255} - 203,255 -
Revaluation surplus 63,280 - - 63,280
Disposals - (16,925) (8,751} {25,676)
Ar 31st December 2005 635,846 93,905 910,874 1,640,625
Ar 1st January 2006 635.846 93,905 910,874 1,640,625
Currency adjustment _ - .
Additions 51,525 375179 426,704
Transfer to investment held for sale - - {2,816} (2,816}

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Reporr and MNnaneial Statements (@) ——/ :
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22  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT {CONTINUED)
= Ed
& g {a) GROUP (CONTINUED}
=N~ ) o
= . Building Furniture
IS on leasehoid Motor and _
& ; land vehicles equipment Total
cm Sh'Hoa Sk'000 Sh'00G SKGOG
I
=l .o
8 o Transfer to intangible assets
S g Reclassification (40.114} (46} (633) (40.793)
Vo Reovaluation surplus 24314 - 24,314
'E A Disposals - (36,226) {2,205} (38,5313
L] G LL}
5 2 At 315t Dacember 2006 620,046 109,158 1,280,299 2,009,503
=
[N Comprising
(E j At cost ) 442,943 109,138 1,280,299 1,832,405
sl > At valuation - 2006 177,098 - - 177,098
Y-
< 620.046 19,158 1,280,299 2,009,503
Sl
4
<
[ o DEPRECIATION
-2- = AT 1st January 2005 64,913 . 57,787 477,308 600,008
Currency rranslation - (957) {(3,882) (4,339}
Transfer t intangible assets - - (R 12
Charge for the year _ 14,074 13,180 83,462 110,725
Eliminated on disposals - {14,950] {8:418) (23,368}
AT 315t December 2005 TR,9%7 55,069 543,458 632,514
At 1st January 2006 78,987 55,069 548,458 682,514
Cusrency translation - - - -
Held for sale - - (2,740} (2,740}
Charge for the year 7054 23,851 91,054 121,959
Eliminated on disposals - {21,926} {2,208) {24,134)
Reclassified on revaluation {35,062) - - (35062}
- At31st December 2006 50,979 56,994 634,564 742,537

(@) Your success, {ur inspiration
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED}

(a) GROUP (CONTINUED}

Building Furniture
on leasahoid Mator and
land vehicles equipment Total
Sh'000 Sh'000 Sh'noG Sh'000
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31st December 2006 569,067 52,164 645,735 1.266,960
At 31st December 2005 556,855 38,836 362,416 958,111
NET BOOK VALLUE (Cost basis)
At 31st Dacember 20046 306,646 51,914 543,168 931,728
At 3151 December 2005 315,956 33.836 362,386 717,178

Mator vehicles, furmiture and equipment stated at a cost of Sh 342,865,774 {2005 - Sh267,258,230) have been

fully depreciated. The normal annual depreciztion charge in respect of these assets would have been

Sh 76,917,628 (2005 - Sh 63.386,957).

Buildings were revalued as ar 31st December 2006, by Tysons Limited, independent valuers, on the basis of the

market value for existing use,

{b) BANK
Building Furniture
on leasehold Maror and
land vehicles aguipment Total
Shoon Sh'Goo SHo00 Sh'DGD
COST
AT 15t January 2005 332,710 25,855 373,186 751,751
Additions - 10,211 157,426 207,637
Disposals - {4,204 {5,850) [1(,054)
At 31st December 2005 352,710 31,862 564,762 949,334
At st january 2006 352,710 31,362 564,762 949,334
Adduiong - 20,764 123,965 144,728
Misposals - {6,915) - (6,915)
Reclassification - - (46) (46}
352,710 45711 688.681 1,087,102

Ar 31st December 2006

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Report and Tinancial Statements (@)
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22  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT [CONTINUED)

&

° {b) BANK (CONTINUED) o .

~ Building . © Furniggre -~ - ¢

o on leaschoid Motor and . i

w land vehicles equipment - Total’

2 Shono Sh'o00 SKODO - Sh'00D

& DEPRECIATION

[ER]

a

- Azt 1st January 2005 34,916 15,579 249914 300,409

; Charge for the year 7,055 5,737 56,239 69,031
-"'{G A Elintinated on disposals ] - {4,204]) (5.598) {9,802)
ol - A
= =l
¥ AL 3151 December 2005 41,971 17,112 300,555 359,638
- m T
4 4
o B At st fanuary 2006 41,971 17,112 300,555 359,638
= - Charge for the year 7,054 9,905 61,646 78,605
o m Elimsinated on disposals - (9383 - (908)
vy B
Rl At 315t December 2006 49,005 26,109 362,201 437,335
Z M

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31st December 2006 303,085 19,602 326,480 649,?_67

At 3 1st December 2005 310,739 14,750 264,207 589,696

Moter vehicles, furniture and equipment stated at a cost of Sh 236,473,363 (2005 —5h 109,819,231 have been
fully depreciated. The norma) annual depreciation charge in respect of these assets would be
Sh 54,314,401 {2005 - Sk 40,058,957

— (@) ' Your success. Ovr inspiranion —_




23  OPERATING LEASE PREPAYMENT
GROUP BANK —~
o
Si'd00 Sh'ooo g g
=
COSY <
At st January 2005 41,609 35,000 5 4
Reclassified to investment property _(5,609] - ;; :;
bl =
Ac31st December 2005 36,000 35,000 &
=
At st Janwary 2006 and 31st December 2006 36,000 35,000 L =
————— . -g -
AMORTISATION ~
SoN -,
At Tst fanuary 2005 5,500 3,400 —
Eliminated on reclassification o investiment property {1,813) B 8 5
Amortisation for the year 360 350 ‘é o)
| - A
At 31st December 2005 4047 3,750 .E m
— : L A
Az 1st January 2006 4 047 3,750 @ j
Amortisation for the year 374 363 ﬁ b
o ™
At 31st December 2006 4,421 4,113 - b
ot Pz "
NET BO0OK vALUE 8 o
At 315t December 2006 31,579 30,857 = -
Z M.
At 315t December 2005 31,953 . 31,250
24  GCOODWILL .
2006 2005
Sh'00¢ Sh'000
COST
At 1sr January and at 315t December 1,084,647 1,084,047

On 15 December 2004, the Group acquired the life insurance business of CFC Life Assurance Limited (formerly Alico
Kenya Limited) through the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Alico Kenya fimited. The acquisition was
made through CFC Holdings Limired and CFC Investments Limited (formerly Trans-National Group Limited), both
wholly owned subsidiaries of CFC Bank Limited. The fair value of the net assets acquired was Sh 819,733,000.

During the vear the group assessed the recoverable amount of soodwill and determined that goodwil! associated with

the Life Assurance husiness of the acquired subsidiary company was nol impaired. The recoverable amount of the life
assurance business was assessed by reference to the cash generating unit’s vaiue in use. A discount factors of 10% per
aonum {2005 10% per annum) was appliad in the value in use madel.

e r— e s e e

e
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34 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

2006 . 2005

SHO000 Sh'000

{h} Analysis of balances of cash and cash

equivalents as shown in the balance sheet and notes:

Cash and other balances with Central Bank of Kenya 508,571 457,740
Treasury bills and bonds 354,456 357,719
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions 1,822,289 2,941,004
Deposits and balances due to banking institutions (1,686,880) (1,362,350)
1,598,436 2,395,013

For the purposes of the cash Row sratement, cash equivalents include shore rerm fiquid investments which are
readily convertible mto known amounis of cash and which were within three months of maturity when acyvired,
lass advances from hanks repayable within three monrhs from the dares of the advances.

¢} Analysis of changes in borrowings

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T DECEMBER 20606

2006 2005

Sh'000 Sh'don

Ompeging balance 952412 623,000
Received m the year 135,500 469,500
Paid in the year (161,410 [140,088)
Closing balance {note 30) 026,502 952,412

(@ Your success. Cur inspiration. —— —_—_—




The table below analyses assets and labilities into relevant maturity groupings iased on the remaining period at 31st December 2006 to the contractual
maturity dates.

35 LIQUIBITY RISK §
i

MNotes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T DECEMBER 2006

. Upte 1-3 3-6 6-12 1-3 3.5 Over T
1 month months Months months Yyaars years 5 years © Toral -
Sho0g Shouo SHho00 SHO00 SKO00 Sh'000 Sh'000 . Sh'o00
ASSETS

4]
R Castt and balances with
& Central Bank of Kenya 1,519,728 40,039 15,681 5,496 119 - - 1,581,064
=
: Government securities 577,697 331,246 1,702,529 202,199 2,860,283 1,938,931 ZAR58.8p8 11,173,093
5 Depasits and balances due
g from banking institutions 861,060 827,599 123,065 10,565 - - - 1,872,289
] -
g Loans and advances Lo customers 3,100,568 2,000,925 1,186,193 1,329,487 4,902,690 2,327.923 205,238 15,053,024
4 .
2 Other assets 1,006,763 1,330,287 43121 1,158,840 205,616 173,500 935424 5,024,551
2 Investrient in associate - - - - 108,889 - - 108,889
= .
= Taxation recoverable - 31.927 - - - - - 31,927
7
e Investmens properties/securiies 380,500 - - - - - - 380,500
[=]
z Other invesiments 1,187,074 922,667 - - - - 3B4,005 2,503,746
a Property and equipment - - - - - - 1266966 1,266,966
5 Operating lease prepayments ) Co- - - - - ~ 31,579 31,579
g Hntangible assets . - § . . - 197,104 197,104
=
m Goodwill - - - - - ~ 1,084,647 1,084,647
&
= Defarred tax asset - 7662 - : - 2,074 91,478 3,069 108,283
5 etttk .
o
= .
hd Tota) assets : 8,673,301 5,492,352 3,070,080 3,347 587 8,270,671 4,531,832 6,981,340  4D,368,662



35 LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

e UOIPAGSIY AN(Y S5OSO (@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315 DECEMBER 2006

Uy ta 1-3 3-& 6-12 1-3 3-5 Qver
t month months Monihs months years years 5 years Total
5h'000 Sh'000 50000 ShO0D Sreoo Sh'000 Sho0o Sh'odn
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Customers deposits 16,811,523 756,151 65623 93,122 1008 - - 17,928,417
Boposits and balancos due
o banklng institutions 1467786 219,094 - - - - - 1,686,880
Line of credit - 60,900 - 60,9010 182,700 - - 304,500
Term Loan - - - - 311,502 - ) - 371,502
Floating Interest rate nate - - - - - - &15,000 615,000
Cther Nabilities 1,512,258 057,688 - 485,402 - - 10,617,200 13,572,557
Taxation Payable 22,258 97,163 - ' - - - - 119,419
Deferred tax fiabitiy - 35,580 - - 26,144 - 75,286 137,010
Unclaimed dividends 83,050 - - - - - - 83050
Share capital - - - - - - 780400 780,020
Share premium - - - - - - 669,420 669,420
Capitai reserves - - - - - - 266,921 266,921
Fair value reserve - - - - - - 394,438 394,438
Revaluation reserves - - - - - - 401962 40,962
Rovenue reserve - - - - - - 2386,612 2,380,612
SHatttory reserve - - - - - - 230,345 130,340
Currency transiation reserve - - - - - - (36,611} {36.611)
Minority interest - - - - - - 278,206 378,226
Total equity and fiabitites 19,856,373 2,126,576 265,623 639,924 521,354 - 16,917,812 40,368,662
Net liquidicy pap {11,273,432) 3,365,776 2,805,366 2,708,163 7.748317 4,531,832 [9,935,971) -
As gt 31 st December 2005
Total assets 5,450,349 4471314 2,043,644 5,240,637 6,350,676 3,355357 6,083,243 33,095,280
Total equity and liabilities 10,911,742 5,083,654 597,674 3,804,294 2,636,852 374,803 8,786,171 33,095280
et Higuidiy gap 15,461.393)  {1,512340) {1,445970} 1,536,403 3,713,824 1980464 (2,702,528} -

Customear deposits i firse category abave represent cuirent, savings and cali depostt account balences, which past experience has shown 1o De stable and of a

long term patura,

¥

1




36 INTEREST RATE RISK

The group is expased to various risks assaciated with the effects of flucteations in the prevailing levels of market interest rares on its financial
position and cash flows. The table below sumimarises the exposure t interest rate tisk. Included in the tabie are the assets and liabilities at canrying
amounts, Categorised by the earlier of contraciual repricing or maturity dates. Fhe group does not bear an interest rate risk on off balance sheet

iterns.
MNon
Upto3 i-6 6-12 1-3 3-5 Owver Interast
months Maonths maonths years years 5 vears Bearing Total
Sh'0G0 Sh'000 ShQ00 Sh'000 5h'000 Sh'000 Sh'000 Sh'Gao -
Q
Py ASSETS
®
E Cash and balances with
-~
[ Central Bank of Kenya 200,000 - - - - - 1,381,064 1,581,064
%’ Government securities 908,943 1,702,929 203,199 2,960,283 1,938,031 2,858,808 - 11,173,093
‘ul Dreposits and balances due
I~
= from banking institutions 1,688,659 123,065 10,565 - - - M 1,822,289
[=]
» Loans and advances to customers 13,685,618 - - - - - 1,367,406 15,053,024
z Other assers - - - - - - 5024551 5024,55%
o
= Investment in associate - - - - - - 108,889 108,889
o
2 Taxation recoverabie - - B ’ - - - 31,927 31,927
" Investment properties - - - R . - 380500 380,500
: Other investments - - A - - - 2,503,746 2,503,746
g Property and equipment - - V - - - 1,266,966 1,266,966
% Onperating lease prepayments - - - - - 31579 31.579
o Intangible assets - Lor o - - - S YAl 197,104
g Goodwill - P - - - - 1,084,647 1,084,647
T
= Deferred tax assat - - - - - - 109,283 109,233
P
@ Tocal assers 16,483,220 1,825,994 813,764 2,960,283 1,933,931 2,858,808 13,487,062 40,368,662
~E

Notes to the Financial Statements (Concinued)
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38 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS INCLUDING OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
(CONTINUED)

{b) Capital commirments

{c) Commitments to extend credjt

=
a+
=
s % GROUP.. Wt BANK
o 2006 2006 2005
[ SW000 Sh'G00 Sh0g0 Sh'000
= : 4
L
E Contracted but not provided
for int the financial statements 49,580 70,446 . :
E
WD Authorised but not contracted for 273,568 57,619 273,568 87,619
.
o
c
]
o

Commitments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer in future subject to cermain condirions. Such commitments
are normally made for a fixed period. The bank may withdraw from its contractual obiigation to extend credit by giving
reasonahle nozice to the customer.

{d} Operating lease arrangements

The company as u lessor

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T DECEMBER 2006

At the balance sheet date, the group had conrracted with tenants for the following Furure lease recaivables:

CGROUP - b
2006 T 2005 " 2005
Sh'000 Sh'o0Q Sh'o0o Sh'a00
Amounis receivable in the next year in respect
of obligations under operating leases expiring:
Within one year - 19,973 13,272 19,973
In ane to five years - - - 2,272

- 19,673 13,272 22245

(@) Your success. Clar inspiration




CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS INCLUDING OFF BALANCE SHEET JTEMS ‘w
(CONTINUED)

(d) Operating lease arrangements (continued)

The company as o Jessee

| Statements (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER 2006

GROUP COMPANY
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sh'000 Sh'000 Sh'000 Sh'000
Amounts payable in the next year in respect of

obligarions under operating leases expiring: o
o
Within one year 27,151 33,536 13,461 14,661 g
ln one to five years 115096 55,56% 89,148 54,249 =

Afrer five years 88,936 84,424 88,036 85,424

231183 173,529 191,545 134,334

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Notes to the F

Foreign exchange forward contracts are agreements to buy or sell a spacified quantity of foreign currency, usually on
a spacified future date at an agreed rate. The bank transacts in foreign exchange forward contraces principatly for the
purpose of generating a profit from short term flucruations in exchange rates. The contracts purchased are primatily
denominated in the currencies of the bank’s principal markets.

Ar the balance sheet date, the bank had contracted o sell Sh 2,459,833,274 angd buy Sh 2,.881,713,111 equivalenis
under forward contracts denominated in US Dollars, GB Pounds, Eurp, Austratian Dollar, lapanese Yen and South
African Rands.

CFC Bank Limired - 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statements (@) _—
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40 CONCENTRATIONS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

E Detaits of significant concentrarions of the banks assets, liabilities and off balance sheet items by industry groups are
~ as derailed below:
=4
w {a) Advances to customers
as)
= 2006 2006 2005 2005
oy S 000 % SWo00 %
w
= Agriculmure 1,019,080 5] 1,020,317 3
I ‘Manufacturing 2,921,288 18 2,134,338 17
; Wholesale and retail trade 1,614,912 Hl 1,568,963 12
A Transport and communications ) 2,995,110 . 1 9 2,282,301 18
Wl Real estate o 204,298 i 120,393 1
il Sacial communiry and personal services 222089 1 141,747 1
g z Electricity and water 38,521 - 64,534 i
L: o Business services 4,213,570 27 2,710,116 22
< Orher 2,647,957 17° 2,526,661 20
-Qc.) o o - .
+ e 15,876,825 100 12,569,370 100
o - - —
Al T
$ - (b) Customer deposits
b
=~ Nom profic institudions 6622859 36 5,739,308 38
Z w Private enterprises 10,503,847 57 8,314,745 54
Insurance companies : 847,838 5 904,157 & .
Non public enterprises 524,433 3 318,109 i
Central Government, 1,743 Co- 71898 [
Co-operative societies 5,927 - 2,165 ) 0
18,506,647 100 15300876 100
(¢) Off batance sheet items (lecters of credit,
guarantees and forward contracts)
Agriculture 1668 - 360,674 7 .
Manufacruring 319,656 ] 527,758 i0 '
wholesale and reraif 840,648 13 459371 3 :
Transpert and communications 246,573 4 349,582 7 .
Business services 669,668 HY BR0LB97 16
COrther 4377914 63 2,742,082 51
6,459,127 100 5,370,364 1010

————— (@) Your success, Qur inspiration
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43

a4

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The group makes contributions 10 defined contriburion yetirement benefits schemes and to the statutory defined
contriburion pension scheme, the National Social Secunty Fund, Contributions o the retirement benefits schemes
are determined by the rules of the schemes while the contriburions 1o the statutory scheme are determined by local

statute. Total contributions by the group in respect of retirement benefits during the year were Sh 55,349,000 [2005
—Sh 43,083,060). Rerirement benefit costs are included in staff costs {note 7}

ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

As at 3isr Decerber 2006, there were no assets pledged o secure Nabilities and there were nc secured liabilities

outstanding.

FAIR YALUES

The directors consider that there is no material difference batween the fair value and carrying value of the company's
financial assets and liabilities where fair value details have not been presented.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

fncluded in loans and advances are amounts advanced to certain directors and 1© companies in which directors

are involved either as shareholders or directors {associated companies). In addition, contingent jiabiiities include -

guarantees and letters of credis, which have been issued 1o associated companies.
Direstors Associated cormpanies ).~

2006 2005

Sh : Sh
Loans gnd advances:
At 1st January 253428 308,744 143,055 133,003
Ner movement during the year 166,041 {55,316} 59,384 10,052
At 3 15c December 412,469 253,428 207,439 148,055
Deposits:
At st fanuary 1,157,083 301,608
Net movement during the year 3,748 855,4?5
At 31sr December : 1,160.831 1,157,083

g
G
2
£
=
=3
<

2a]
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=
=
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3
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v
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otes to the Finaiicial Statements (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" DECEMBER 2006

N

T
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—e i
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Key management compensation
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the vear were as follows:
2006 2005
Sh Sh
Salaries and other benefits . 199,750 119,886
Directors’ remuneration
Fees for services as direcrors 14,338 9,930
Other emoluments {inciuded in key management
compensation above) a5417 42,441
109,805 52,421

Loans and advances to customers ar 3 1st December 2006 include {oans and advances to companies associated to the
directors and |oans to employees of Sk 207,439,000 (2005- Sh 148,655,000). There were no outstanding advances
to directors.

These loans and advances are performing and adequately secured.

Contingent iiabilities at 315t December 2006 include contingencies on behalf of companies associated 1o the directors
of Sh 866,000,000 (2005-5h 214,541,000).

Direclors fees has been disclosed in note &.

All related party transactions are gt arms tength and in the normal course of business.

(@ Your success. Qur inspiration _ —
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RiSK MANACEMENT POLICIES

The group's financial risk management objectives
and policies are as outlinad balow:

BANKING
Credit risk

The group's credit risk cavers the rules on extension
of ioans and advances ro its customers. The amounts
presented in the balance sheet arg net of allowances
for doubtiul debts, estimated by the group's
management based on prior cxperience and their
assessimient of the current aconomic environment.

The group structures the level of credic risk it
undertakes by placing limits on amounts of risk
accepted in relation to one horrower or 2 group of
borrowers. Such risks are monitored on a regular
basts and are subject to annual or more frequent

review,

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular
analysis of the ability of borrowers to meet interesr
and capital repayment obligations and by taking
remedial action where appropriate. Exposure to
credit risk is also midgated in parr by obtaining
collateral and corporate guarantees, though ability
o pay is the primary consideration.

The group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in any one sector, as exposure is spread over a
diversity of personal and commercial customers as

ser out in note 40.
Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to the risk that the value of

a financial instrument wilf fluctuate due 1o changes
in marker interest rata. terest rates oo advarnces

customers and other visk assets are either pegged
to the bank's base lending rate or treasury biil rate.
The base rate is adjusted from time to time to reflect
the cost of deposits. The interest rates, therefore,
fluctuate depending on the movement in the marker
interest rates. The group also invests in fixed
teerest rate inscruments issued by the Central hank
of Kenva.

Interest rate on customer deposits are negotiared
between the bank and the customer. The bank
fias the discretion to change the rates in line with
changas i market crends.

These measures minimise the group’s exposure 10
interest rate risk.

Liguidity risk

The group is exposed to the risk thar.rhe group
will encounter difficulty in raising funds 1o meet
commitments associated with financial instruments.
Liquidity risk is addressed through the following

TNeASUres:

* The bank enters into lending contracts
subject ta availability of funds.

+ The bank has an aggressive strategy aimed ag
increasing the customer deposit base.

+ The bank borrows from the market through
inter hank transactions with other banks,
pension funds and insurance compauies for
short term liquidity requirements.

+ The bank invests in short term liquid
{nstrements which can casily be soid in the
markot when the need atises.

- Investments in property and equipment are
properly budgeted for and done when the
group has sufficiens cash flows.

CFC Bank Limited - 2006 Annual Report and Financial Statemants (@) .
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
{CONTINUED}

Currency risk

The group is exposed to the risk that the value of the
financial instruments wiil fluctuare due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. Forex exposure limits
are reviewed and approved by the board. The board,
through the assets and liahility commitlee ensures
rhat the foreign exchange risk policy is adhered to
and any deviations are reported for appropriate
action,

QOperational Risk

The group is exposed to operational risk which is
associated with human error, system failures and
inadequate procedures and comrols. | The group
ensuresthatthereisaneffective, integrated operational
risk management framework that incorporaies a
clearly defined organizational structure, with defined
roles and responsibilities for all aspects of operational
risk management/moniering and approphiate 1oolks
thar support the identification, assessmert, controf
and reporting of key risks. The policy includes-

- The structure of operational risk managemeng
function;

- The roles and responsibililies of individuals
invobved and

»  Systems and procedures for effective
operational risk management

INSURANCE

The group’s activitias expose jf to z variety of
financial risks, including insurance risk, financial
risk, credit risk, and the effects of changes in
property values, debt and equiry market prices,
foreign currency exchange rafes and interest rates,
The group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the identification znd management of
risks and seeks to minimise potencial adverse effects

on its financial performance, by use of yunderwriting
guidelines and capacity limits, reinsurance planning,
credit policy governing the acceptance of ¢lients, and
defined criteria for the approvai of intermediaries and
reinsurers. invesrment policies are in piace which
hefp manage liquidiry, and seek o maximise refura
within an acceptable fevel of interest rate risk.

Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the rcsuiiing claim. By
the very narure of an insurance contract, this risk is
random and therefore unpredictable,

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the
theory of probabifity is applied to pricing and
provisioning, the principal visk that the group faces
under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims
and bencfit payments exceed the carrying amount
of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because
rhe frequency or severity of claims and benefits are
greater than estimated. 1nsurance ¢vents are random
and the acrual number and amount of claims and
benefits wifl vary from vear (o vear from the level
astablished using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolic of
similar insurance conrracts, the smaller the relative
varability about the expected ourcome will be. In
addition, a2 mare diversified portfolio is less likely
to be affected across the board by 2 change in any
subset of the partfalio. The group has develaped its
insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepred and within each of these
categories t0 achieve a sufficiently large population
of risks to reduce the veriability of the expected
ourconie.

factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack
of risk diversification in terms of type and amouni
of risk, geographical location and type of industry
covered.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
{CONTINUED)

Financial risk

The group is exposed to financial risk through its
financial assets, financial liabilities (investment
cantracts and borrowings), reinsurance assers and
insurance liabitities. In particular the key Fnancial
risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets are
not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from
its insurance and invesrmenr contracts. The most
important components of this fnancial risk are
interest rate risk, aquity price risk, currency risk and
credit risk.

These risks arise from apen positions in interest
rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movemants.
The risks that the group primarily faces due to the
nature of its investments and labilities are interest
rate risk and equiry price risk.

The group manages these positions within an asset
Hability management (ALM] framework thar has
been developed to achieve long-term investment
returns in excess of its obligations under insurance
and investment contracts. Tha principal technique of
the group’s ALM is to match assets to the liabilities
arising from insurance and investment contracts by
reference 10 the type of benafits payable to contract
holders. For each distinct category of liahilities, a
separate portfolio of assets is maintained.

Interest race risk

Exposure to interest sensitive assets is managed by
use of a vield curve in order ro ansure that the group
does not hold low vielding investments in a high

interest rate environinent.
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The group has an investment committee which sets
mvestment guidelines that seek to reduce exposure
to interest rate risk.

Credit policy

The Group grants a one month credit period to all
classes of policies after which they lapse.

Liguidity risk

The group manages its investments in such a way as
10 meet irs liabilities as they fall due.

Currency risk

The Group's policy is to minimise currency risk by
halding assets in the same currency as the underlying
liabilities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND RIDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The group makes estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounis of assets and liabilities
within the next tinancial vear. Fsrimares and
judgements are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of furura events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumsrances.

Insurance

The esrimarion of future benefit payments from
long-term insurance contracts is the group's most
critical “accounting estimate. There are several
sources of uncertainty that need ro be considered

in the estimate of the liability that the group will |

ultimately pay for such claims.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The determination of the liabilities under long-
term insurance contracts is dependent on estimares
made by the group. Estimates are made as 1o the
expectad number of deaths for each of the years
in which the group is exposed to risk. The group
bases these estimates on standard mortality tables
that reflect historical mortality expetience. The
estimared number of deaths determines the value of
the benefit payments and the value of the valuation
premiums. The main source of uncertainty is that
apidemics such as AIDS could result in future
mortality being significantly worse than in the past
for the age groups in which the group has significant
exposure to mortality risk.

For contracts without fixed terms, it is assumed
that the group will be able to increase mortalivy
risk charges in future years in line with emerging
mortality experience.

Estimates are also made as to future investmenr
income arising from the assets backing long-term
insurance contracts. These estimates are based on
currant market returns as well as expectzarions abhour
future economic and financial developments.

Impairment losses on leans and advances

The group reviews its loan porgfolios to assess
impairment regularly. In derermining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income
statement, the group makes judgements as 1o
whether there is any observable dara .indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cashflows from a portfolio of foans, before
3 decrease can be identified with an individua!
Ioan in that porifolio. This evidence may include
aobservable data indicating that rhere has been an
é.;d.,\ierse change in the payment status of borrawers
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in a group, or national or local economic conditions

that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
Management uses estimates based on historical {oss
experience for assers with credir risk characreristics
and objeclive evidence of. impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when scheduiing fts future
cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amounr and timing of fisture
cash flows are reviewed regularly o reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss
expeariance.

Held -jo-maturity investments

The group foliows the guidance of 1AS 39 on
classifying non-derivarive financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the group evaluares its intention and ability to hold
such investments to maturity. If the group fails to
keep these investments to -maturity other ¢han for
the specific circumsrances - for example, selling an
insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be
required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale. The investments would therefore be me

asured at Fair value not amortised cost,

Property, plant end equipment
Critical estimates are made by the directors in

determining depreciation rates for property, plant

and equipment.

INCORPORATION

The bank is domiciled and incorporated m Kenvya
under the Companies Act.

CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in Kenya
shillings thousands (SHG0Q}.

£ e
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- [/we R of
being a Member/Members of the above-named Bank, hereby appoint

of

" or failing him / her - ot

or failing him / her, the duly appoinred Chairman of the meeting as my / our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf ar

the Annuat General Meeting of the Bank to be held on 25th May 2007 and ar any adiournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand(s) this . day of 2007
Member
Notes:
1. To be valid, this proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Bank not less than 48 hours before the time

appointed for the meeting.

2. If the appointer is a corporation, the proxy must be under it common seal or nnder rhe hand of an QOfficer ar

Attorney duly authorised in writing,

— Mimi/Sisi wa
= kama mwanachama / wanachama wa Benki iliyotajwa hapo juu, hapa namchagua 7 tunamchagua
wh
~ wa
<
g ama akikosa wa -
pul ama akikosa yeye, basi namchagua / tunamchagua yule alivechaguliva Mwenyekiti wa Mkutano huu kuwa Mwakilishi wangu
9/ wew, kunipigia / kutupigia kura kwa nizba yangu / yetu kattka Mkutanc Mkuu wa Benki wa Mwaka utakaofanywa tarehe
= 25 Mei 2007 ama tarehe vo yote iie iwapo mkutano utaahirishwa,
b
Kama shahidi natia / tunatia sahihi hi / hizi siku hii va 2007
Mwanachama
Ukumbusho:
v 1. 11i ithibitishwe, karatasi hii ya Mwakilishi inapaswa kupelekwa kwa ofisi ilivoandikishwa ya Benki katika muda
usiopungua masaa 48 kabla ya muda uliowekwa wa Mkutano.
2. tkiwa mwenve kuchagua ni Shirika basi karatasi ya mwakilishi lazima ibandikwe ule muhuri wa Kampuni wa kawaida

K ama kibali cha ofisa ama wakala aliyepewa kibali kwa maandisht. /
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Company Secretary
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lasert flap inside
Sasa ingiza hii karatasi ndani ya
mkunjo ili ionekane kama bahasha
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